
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

Please note that by law this meeting can be filmed, audio-
recorded, photographed or reported electronically by the 
use of social media by anyone attending.  This does not 
apply to any part of the meeting that is held in private 
session. 

Please ask for: 
Jonah Anthony 

 
 

17 June 2021 
 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
 

You are requested to attend a meeting of the WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH 
COUNCIL AUDIT COMMITTEE to be held on Monday 28 June 2021 at 7.30 pm in the 
Council Chambers, Council Offices, The Campus, Welwyn Garden City, Hertfordshire, 
AL8 6AE. 
 

 
 
Yours faithfully 

 
Corporate Director 
Public Protection, Planning and Governance 
 
 

A G E N D A 
PART 1 

 

1.   SUBSTITUTION OF MEMBERS  
 

 To note any substitution of Committee members made in accordance with Council 
Procedure Rules. 
 

2.   APOLOGIES  
 

3.   MINUTES  
 

 To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 22 March 2021 
(previously circulated). 
 

4.   NOTIFICATION OF URGENT BUSINESS TO BE CONSIDERED UNDER ITEM 11  
 

Public Document Pack



5.   DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS BY MEMBERS  
 

 To note declarations of Members’ disclosable pecuniary interests, non-disclosable 
pecuniary interests and non-pecuniary interests in respect of items on this agenda. 
 

6.   PUBLIC QUESTION TIME AND PETITIONS  
 

 Up to thirty minutes will be available for questions from members of the public on 
issues relating to the work of the Committee and to receive any petitions. 
 

7.   SHARED INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE - ANNUAL REPORT (Pages 5 - 28) 
 

 Report of the Shared Internal Audit Service asking Members to note the Annual 
Report. 
 

8.   SHARED INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE - 2021/22 INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS 
REPORT (Pages 29 - 44) 
 

 Report of the Shared Internal Audit Service (SIAS) which provides details on the 
progress made by SIAS in delivering the Council’s Annual Audit Plan for 2021/22 
as at 17 June 2021. 
 

9.   STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2020/21 UPDATE  
 

 Report of the Head of Resources to provide a verbal update on the Statement of 
Accounts 2020/21. 
 

10.   DRAFT ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 
2020-21 (Pages 45 - 66) 
 

 Report of the Chief Executive which presents the draft Annual Governance 
Statement for the financial year 2020/21. 
 

11.   SUCH OTHER BUSINESS AS, IN THE OPINION OF THE CHAIR, IS OF 
SUFFICIENT URGENCY TO WARRANT IMMEDIATE CONSIDERATION  
 

12.   EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 

 The Committee is asked to resolve: 
 

That under Section 100(A) (2) and (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the 
press and public be now excluded from the meeting for item 12 (if any) on the 
grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of confidential or exempt 
information as defined in Section 100A (3) and Part I of Schedule 12A of the 
said Act as amended. 
 
In resolving to exclude the public in respect of the exempt information, it is 
considered that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs 
the public interest in disclosing the information. 



 

PART II 
 

13.   ANY OTHER BUSINESS OF AN EXEMPT NATURE AT THE DISCRETION OF 
THE CHAIR  
 

 
Circulation: Councillors G.Michaelides (Chairman) 

J.Boulton (Vice-Chairman) 
L.Brandon 
G.Ganney 
 

F.Marsh 
S.Kasumu 
J.Skoczylas 
 

    
 
 Corporate Management Team 

Press and Public (except Part II Items) 
 
If you require any further information about this Agenda please contact Jonah 
Anthony, Governance Service on 01707357413 or email – 
democracy@welhat.gov.uk  
 

mailto:democracy@welhat.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

RECOMMENDATIONs 
Members are recommended to: 
 Note the Annual Assurance Opinion and Internal Audit Annual 

Report  
 Note the results of the self-assessment required by the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and the Quality Assurance and 
Improvement Programme (QAIP) 

 Accept the SIAS Audit Charter 2021/22 
 Seek management assurance that the scope and resources for 

internal audit were not subject to inappropriate limitations in 
2020/21 

 

 

ANNUAL ASSURANCE OPINION AND 
INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL REPORT 

2020/21 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
JUNE 2021 

Page 5

Agenda Item 7



Annual Assurance Statement and Internal Audit Annual Report - 
Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council 

1 
 

Contents 

1.  Purpose and Background 
 1.1  Purpose 
 1.2  Background 
 
2. Annual Assurance Opinion for 2020/21 

2.1 Context 
2.2 Control Environment 
2.4 Review of Effectiveness - compliance with 

the PSIAS and QAIP 
2.11 Confirmation of independence of internal 

audit and assurance on limitations 
2.12 Assurance Opinion on Internal Control 
2.13 Assurance Opinion on Corporate 

Governance and Risk Management 
 

3. Overview of Internal Audit Activity at the Council in 
2020/21 

 
4. Performance of the Internal Audit Service in 2020/21 

4.1 Performance Indicators 
4.2 Service Developments 

 
5. Audit Charter 2021/22 

 
Appendices 
 
A  Final position against the Council’s 2020/21 Audit 

Plan 
 
B Definitions of Assurance Recommendation Priority 

Levels  
 
C Position against Public Sector Internal Audit 

Standards as at April 2021 
 
D Internal Audit Charter 2021/22 

Page 6



Annual Assurance Statement and Internal Audit Annual Report - 
Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council 

2 
 

1.  Purpose and Background 
 

Purpose of Report 
 

1.1 This report: 
 

a) Details the Shared Internal Audit Service’s (SIAS) overall opinion on 
the adequacy and effectiveness of Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council’s 
(the Council) control environment. Reference is made to any significant 
matters and key themes. 

b) Shows the outcomes of the self-assessment against the Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) incorporating the requirements of the 
Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme (QAIP). 

c) Summarises the audit work that informs this opinion. 
d) Shows SIAS performance in respect of delivering the Council’s audit 

plan. 
e) Presents the 2021/22 Audit Charter. 
 
Background 
 

1.2 A key duty of the Head of Assurance is to provide an annual opinion on 
the Council’s internal control environment. This opinion informs the 
conclusions of the Council’s Annual Governance Statement.   
 

1.3 The assurance opinion in this report is based on internal audit work 
undertaken during 2020/21. The original Internal Audit Plan was revised in 
response to the COVID-19 pandemic, reflecting both a reduction in the 
number of available audit days and to incorporate associated coverage 
where agreed with audit sponsors. The revised Audit Plan therefore 
continued to give sufficient assurance on the Council’s management of its 
key risks. Also considered is any relevant work undertaken in 2021/22 
before the Audit Committee report deadline. 
 

1.4 SIAS is grateful for the co-operation and support it has received from 
client officers during 2020/21. 

  

2.  Annual Assurance Statement 2020/21 
 

Context 
 

Scope of responsibility 
 

2.1 Council managers are responsible for ensuring Council business is 
conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards, and that 
public money is safeguarded, properly accounted for, and used 
economically, efficiently and effectively. They are also responsible for 
ensuring internal controls are robust and risk management arrangements 
are appropriate.  

Page 7



Annual Assurance Statement and Internal Audit Annual Report - 
Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council 

3 
 

Control environment  
 

2.2 The control environment comprises three key areas: governance, risk 
management, and internal control. Together these aim to manage risk to 
an acceptable level, but it is accepted that it is not possible to completely 
eliminate it.   

 
2.3 A robust control environment helps ensure that the Council’s policies, 

priorities and objectives are achieved.   
 

Review of effectiveness 
 

2.4 The Head of Assurance must confirm annually that the internal audit 
function is suitably qualified to carry out the work that informs the 
assurance opinion.   

 
2.5 As part of a QAIP, a self-assessment was conducted against the Public 

Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). The PSIAS encompass the 
mandatory elements of the Chartered Institute of Internal Auditors (CIIA) 
International Professional Practices Framework (IPPF). They promote 
professionalism, quality, consistency and effectiveness of internal audit 
across the public sector. They highlight the importance of robust, 
independent and objective internal audit arrangements to provide senior 
management with the key assurances needed to support them in both 
managing the organisation and producing the Annual Governance 
Statement. 

 
2.6 The 2020/21 self-assessment identified 2 areas of agreed non-

conformance. These are detailed in Appendix C. There are no significant 
deviations from Standards which warrant inclusion in the Council’s Annual 
Governance Statement. 

 
2.7 The PSIAS also requires that the SIAS be subject to an external quality 

assessment at least once every five years. This should be conducted by a 
qualified, independent assessor or assessment team from outside the 
organisation. The next external assessment is scheduled for June 2021. 

 
2.8 The Head of Assurance has concluded, therefore, that SIAS ‘generally 

conforms’ to the PSIAS, including the Definitions of Internal Auditing, the 
Code of Ethics and the International Standards for the Professional 
Practice of Internal Auditing. ‘Generally conforms’ is the highest rating and 
means that SIAS has a charter, policies and processes assessed as 
conformant to the Standards and is consequently effective.  
 

2.9 The SIAS QAIP includes both internal and external monitoring and 
reporting to assess the efficiency and effectiveness of internal audit 
activity and identify opportunities for improvement. The diagram below 
details the methods used to monitor and report on these. Detailed 
information outlining activity in each area is contained in the SIAS Audit 
Manual. 
 

Page 8



Annual Assurance Statement and Internal Audit Annual Report - 
Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council 

4 
 

2.10 The Head of Assurance confirms that during 2020/21 SIAS operated 
according to its QAIP with evidence available within the service to support 
the achievement of each QAIP element.   

 
  
 

 
Confirmation of independence of internal audit and assurance on 
limitations 
 

2.11 The Head of Assurance confirms that during the year: 
 

a) No matters threatened SIAS’s independence; and 
b) SIAS was not subject to any inappropriate scope or resource 
 limitations. 

Page 9



Annual Assurance Statement and Internal Audit Annual Report - 
Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council 

5 
 

 
 Annual Assurance Statement for 2020/21 
 

Assurance opinion on internal control 
 

2.12 Based on the internal audit work undertaken at the Council in 2020/21, 
SIAS can provide the following opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness 
of the Council’s control environment, broken down between financial and 
non-financial systems. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Assurance opinion on Corporate Governance and Risk Management 

 
2.13 SIAS has concluded that the corporate governance and risk management 

frameworks substantially comply with the CIPFA/SOLACE best practice 
guidance on corporate governance. This conclusion is based on the work 
undertaken by the Council and reported in its Annual Governance 
Statement for 2020/21 and although no specific review of Risk 
Management was completed this year, risk management is considered as 
part of annual audit planning and delivery of individual audit assignments. 

 
2.14 SIAS has noted the actions raised in the Annual Governance Statement 

and will consider these during the mid-year and annual planning cycles for 
consideration in the Annual Audit Plan. 

 
 

  
 
 Head of Assurance for the Shared Internal Audit Service  

June 2021 

Our overall opinion is Satisfactory 
Assurance; meaning the internal control 
framework is largely working well in 
managing the key risks in scope, with 
some audit findings related to the 
current arrangements.  

 

ASSURANCE OPINION:  
NON-FINANCIAL 
SYSTEMS 

Our overall opinion is Satisfactory 
Assurance; meaning the internal control 
framework is largely working well in 
managing the key risks in scope, with 
some audit findings related to the 
current arrangements.  
 

   

ASSURANCE OPINION:  
FINANCIAL SYSTEMS 

Page 10



Annual Assurance Statement and Internal Audit Annual Report - 
Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council 

6 
 

3.  Overview of Internal Audit Activity at the 
Council in 2020/21 

 
3.1 This section summarises work undertaken at the Council by SIAS in 

2020/21. It highlights any significant internal control matters and 
opportunities for improvement. 

 
3.2 Appendix A shows the final position against the agreed revised audit plan, 

assurance levels and the number of recommendations made. A summary 
of assurance levels and recommendation priorities is shown in the tables 
below (2019/20 data in brackets).   
 

Assurance Level Number of reports 
issued in 2020/21 

(2019/20 data in brackets) 
 

Percentage of reports issued 
in 2020/21 

(2019/20 data in brackets) 

Good 7 (8) 30% (31%) 
Satisfactory 12 (12) 52% (46%) 
Limited 1 (0) 4.5% (0%) 
No 0 (0) 0% (0%) 
Not Assessed 2 (4) 9% (15%) 
Not Yet Finalised 1 (2) 4.5% (8%) 
Total 23 (26) 100% (100%) 

 
Recommendation 
Priority Level 

Number of 
recommendations 
issued in 2020/21 

(2019/20 data in brackets) 

Percentage of 
recommendations made 

issued in 2020/21 
(2019/20 data in brackets) 

 
Critical 0 (0) 0% (0%) 
High 1 (0) 2% (0%) 
Medium 25 (27) 53% (69%) 
Low 21 (12) 45% (31%) 
Total 47 (39) 100% (100%) 

 
3.3 The Satisfactory assurance opinion overall on financial systems 

(Satisfactory in 2019/20) has been concluded from six financial systems 
audits. Two received Good assurance and four received Satisfactory 
assurance. No Critical or High priority recommendations were made 
across these audits. Seven Medium priority recommendations were made 
which represents an increase from three in 2019/20. 

 
3.4 The Satisfactory assurance opinion overall on non-financial systems 

(Satisfactory in 2019/20) has been concluded from 17 audits. Five audits 
received Good assurance, nine received Satisfactory assurance, one 
received Limited assurance and two were not assessed. A total of 18 
medium priority recommendations were made in the non-financial audits.  

Page 11



Annual Assurance Statement and Internal Audit Annual Report - 
Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council 

7 
 

 
3.5 In arriving at our Satisfactory assurance opinion for non-financial systems, 

we highlight that most opinions issued for individual 2020/21 audits during 
the year were assessed as Good or Satisfactory assurance. This indicates 
the Council has satisfactory or good systems of internal control for a wide 
range of areas. In reaching our opinion, we have also noted one report 
where the opinion was Limited. This audit was Building Services Asset 
Management, for which further explanation is provided at 3.7 below.  
 

3.6 In addition, two projects were classified as “Not Assessed”, i.e. no audit 
assurance opinion was given. These two audits have contributed to the 
assurance opinion on non-financial systems as they were grant validations 
/ certifications that confirmed the Council complied with the grant 
conditions. 
 

3.7 A limited assurance opinion was provided in the Building Services Asset 
Management audit. This is due to one high priority recommendation being 
raised relating to introducing an inspections programme and tightening 
record keeping in this respect. Whilst the issue raised in this report are 
significant, this audit conclusion on its own is insufficient to reduce the 
overall annual assurance opinion 
 

3.8 One audit was at draft report stage at the time of writing this Annual 
Report, with a management response awaited (Housing Land Supply). 
This audit has not influenced or affected the assurance opinion on non-
financial systems for 2020/21 and will be considered when forming our 
opinion for 2021/22. 
 

3.9 As highlighted at paragraph 1.3 above, internal audit activity at the Council 
was reduced and revised in response to the COVID-19 pandemic. This 
meant one assignment was initially deleted from the originally approved 
programme of audits. In addition, the pandemic provided a backdrop that 
was considered during some audit assignments e.g. Absence 
Management and IT Asset Management. It should be noted that no 
specific internal audit work relating to the pandemic was commissioned 
during 2020/21. However, management assurance was provided in 
relation to associated risks, governance arrangements and internal 
control. 
 

3.10 In addition to the management assurance described at paragraph 3.9, we 
have considered the following other sources of assurance available to 
support our view on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s risk 
management, governance and internal controls in light of COVID-19:  
 
a) SIAS continues to maintain close working relationships with key 

stakeholders, including S151 Officer and Chief Executive through the 
quarterly liaison meetings.  

b) The implementation status of all recommendations throughout the 
year, as reported to the Audit Committee. 

 

Page 12



Annual Assurance Statement and Internal Audit Annual Report - 
Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council 

8 
 

3.11 Our opinion has taken into consideration the risks and impacts associated 
with any control weaknesses in those areas receiving Limited assurance, 
both in draft and final reports. Members will continue to receive updates 
on the implementation progress of critical and high priority 
recommendations through the SIAS quarterly progress reports to the Audit 
Committee. 

 

4.  Performance of the Internal Audit Service in 
2020/21 

 
 Performance indicators 
 
4.1 The table below compares SIAS’s performance at the Council against the 

2020/21 targets set by the SIAS Board.   
 

Indicator Target 
2020/21 

Actual to 31 
March 2021 

 
1 SIAS Planned Days – percentage 
of actual billable days delivered 
against planned billable days  
 

 
95% 

 

 
99% 

 

 
2 SIAS Planned Projects – actual 
completed projects to draft report 
stage against planned completed 
projects 
 

95% 
 

100% 
 

 
3 SIAS Annual Plan – presented to 
the March Audit Committee or the 
first meeting of the financial year 
should a March committee not meet. 
   

Deadline 
met Yes 

 
4 Client Satisfaction - client 
satisfaction questionnaires returned 
at ‘satisfactory overall’ level 
(minimum of 39/65 overall) 
 

 
100% 

 

93% 
(14 returned – one 
receiving a score 

of 38/65) 

 
5 Head of Assurance’s Annual 
Report – presented at the first Audit 
Committee meeting of the financial 
year 
 

Deadline 
met Yes 

 
6 Number of High Priority Audit 
Recommendations agreed 95% 

 
100% 

(1 raised) 
 

Page 13



Annual Assurance Statement and Internal Audit Annual Report - 
Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council 

9 
 

 
Service Developments 

 
4.2 During 2020/21 the development activities for SIAS included: 

 
a) Staffing – refresher training on risk and control techniques was provided 

for all SIAS staff during the third quarter of 2020/21. A replacement 
Senior Auditor was recruited in September 2020 following the 
retirement of an existing Senior Auditor. All Senior Auditors carried out 
some supervisory duties during 2020/21, such as reviewing the work of 
Auditors and Trainees. This provided development opportunities and 
helped compensate for a vacant Client Audit Manager post. The move 
to remote working under Government pandemic restrictions resulted in 
changes to some of the SIAS audit methodology e.g. the electronic 
capture of audit evidence and the suspension of site visits. 

 
b) External Quality Assessment (EQA) – preparations for the SAIS EQA, 

scheduled for June 2021, began during the last quarter of the year. This 
external assessment will involve a review of the service’s position 
against the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). In advance 
of the external assessment an internal self-review of procedures and 
working practices was carried out. Folders of supporting material have 
also been prepared to address formal PSIAS lines of enquiry within the 
EQA. 

 
c) Data Analytics – organisations are seeing increasing digitisation of their 

operations. Data analytics is a powerful tool which can be incorporated 
into the audit process and enhances the ability to carry out whole 
population testing and continuous auditing. This in turn can enhance the 
assurance provided on the management of risk and controls. Work 
began in late 2020/21 to evaluate the value of data analytics to SIAS 
partners, and on producing a potential strategy for acquiring the 
required skillsets, thinking and methodologies. 

 

5.  Audit Charter 2021/22 
 
5.1  The PSIAS require a local authority to formally adopt an Audit Charter 

which covers the authority and responsibility for an internal audit function.  
 
5.2 The SIAS Audit Charter sets out the framework within which it discharges 

its internal audit responsibilities to those charged with governance in the 
partner councils. It details the permanent arrangements for internal audit 
and key governance roles and responsibilities to ensure the effectiveness 
of internal audit provision.   

 
5.3 The Audit Charter is reviewed annually. The review in April 2021 did not 

result in any fundamental changes and the 2021/22 Charter is attached at 
Appendix D. 

 

Page 14



APPENDIX A – FINAL POSITION AGAINST THE COUNCIL’S 2020/21 AUDIT PLAN 

10 
 

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council Audit Plan – 2020/21 

AUDITABLE AREA LEVEL OF ASSURANCE RECS AUDIT 
PLAN 
DAYS 

STATUS/COMMENT 
C H M L 

Key Financial Systems 
Business World (Financial System) Satisfactory 0 0 1 0 15 Final Report Issued 
Treasury Management Good 0 0 0 0 7 Final Report Issued 
Housing Benefits Satisfactory 0 0 2 2 10 Final Report Issued* 
Revenues Good 0 0 0 1 15 Final Report Issued 
Payroll  Satisfactory 0 0 2 0 12 Final Report Issued 
Housing Rents Satisfactory 0 0 2 3 10 Final Report Issued 
Operational Audits 
Building Services Asset Management Limited 0 1 1 1 

10 
Final Report Issued 

Building Services Regulatory Safety 
Compliance Satisfactory 0 0 1 0 Final Report Issued 

Climate Change and Sustainability Satisfactory 0 0 1 0 7 Final Report Issued 
Council Website Satisfactory 0 0 3 0 13 Final Report Issued 
DFG Certification Not Assessed 0 0 0 0 2 Complete 
Food Safety       Cancelled 
Housing Land Supply      10 Draft Report Issued 
Independent Living Services Satisfactory 0 0 1 1 12 Final Report Issued 
Lone Worker Devices Good 0 0 0 1 10 Final Report Issued 
Regulating Private Housing Satisfactory 0 0 3 1 10 Final Report Issued 
Responsive Repairs Satisfactory 0 0 2 1 10 Final Report Issued 
Right to Buy Pooling Good 0 0 0 2 10 Final Report Issued 
COVID-19 LA Compliance and Enforcement 
Grant Not Assessed 0 0 0 0 2 Complete 

Corporate Audits 
Absence Management Satisfactory 0 0 4 0 15 Final Report Issued 
Housing Development Company Satisfactory 0 0 1 1 15 Final Report Issued 

P
age 15



APPENDIX A – FINAL POSITION AGAINST THE COUNCIL’S 2020/21 AUDIT PLAN 

11 
 

AUDITABLE AREA LEVEL OF ASSURANCE RECS AUDIT 
PLAN 
DAYS 

STATUS/COMMENT 
C H M L 

Contract Audits 
Streetscene Contract Management Good 0 0 0 2 10 Final Report Issued* 
IT Audits 
Disaster Recovery Good 0 0 0 2 12 Final Report Issued 
GDPR Good 0 0 0 0 6 Final Report Issued 
IT Asset Management Satisfactory 0 0 1 3 12 Final Report Issued 
Shared Learning and Joint Reviews 
Shared Learning      - Cancelled 
Joint Reviews      - Cancelled 
Contingency      0  
Strategic Support 
2021/22 Audit Planning      6 Complete 
Audit Committee      8 Complete 
Client Meetings      6 Cancelled 
Head of Assurance Opinion 2019/20      3 Complete 
Liaison with External Audit      1 Complete 
Progress Monitoring      8 Complete 
SIAS Development      5 Complete 
Recommendations Follow Ups      5 Complete 
19/20 Projects Requiring Completion      2 Complete 
Total  0 1 25 21 279  

    

* At Draft Report stage at 31 March 2021, Final Report issued after year end. 

Key to Recommendation Priority Levels: C = Critical priority recommendations; H = High priority recommendations; M = Medium priority 
recommendations; L = Low priority recommendations. 

P
age 16



APPENDIX B – DEFINITIONS OF ASSURANCE AND RECOMMENDATION PRIORITY LEVELS 

12 
 

 
2020/21 Definitions of Assurance and Recommendation Priority Levels  

Assurance Level Definition 

Good The design and operation of the internal control framework is effective, thereby ensuring that the key risks in scope are being well 
managed and core objectives will likely be achieved. There are minor reportable audit findings. 

Satisfactory The internal control framework is largely working well in managing the key risks in scope, with some audit findings related to the 
current arrangements.   

Limited 
The system of internal control is only partially effective, with important audit findings in key areas. Improvement in the design 
and/or operation of the control environment is necessary to gain assurance risks are being managed to an acceptable level, and 
core objectives will be achieved. 

No The system of internal control has serious gaps, and controls are not effective in managing the key risks in scope. It is highly 
unlikely that core objectives will be met without urgent management intervention. 

  

Priority Level Definition 

C
or

po
ra

te
 

Critical Audit findings which, in the present state, represent a serious risk to the organisation as a whole, i.e. reputation, financial resources 
and / or compliance with regulations. Management action to implement the appropriate controls is required immediately. 

Se
rv

ic
e 

High Audit findings indicate a serious weakness or breakdown in control environment, which, if untreated by management intervention, 
is highly likely to put achievement of core service objectives at risk. Remedial action is required urgently. 

Medium Audit findings which, if not treated by appropriate management action, are likely to put achievement of some of the core service 
objectives at risk. Remedial action is required in a timely manner. 

Low  Audit findings indicate opportunities to implement good or best practice, which, if adopted, will enhance the control environment. 
The appropriate solution should be implemented as soon as is practically possible. 

P
age 17



APPENDIX C – POSITION AGAINST PUBLIC SECTOR INTERNAL AUDIT STANDARDS AT APRIL 2021 – ACTION PLAN 

13 
 

Section A: Conformance - During 2020/21, all areas apart from those identified in Section B below were deemed to be 
conforming.  
 
Section B: Intentional Non-Conformance 
 

Ref Area of Non-Conformance with the 
Standard 

Commentary  

3.1a Purpose, Authority and Responsibility 
 
Does the board (defined as the Audit 
Committee) approve decisions relating to 
the appointment and removal of the Chief 
Audit Executive (CAE) (Head of 
Assurance)? 

 
 
The Director of Resources, Hertfordshire County 
Council (HCC), in consultation with the Board of the 
Shared Internal Audit Services approves decisions 
relating to the appointment and removal of the 
CAE. 
 
This is as provided for in the governance of the 
Shared Internal Audit Service. 

Non-conformance  
 
No further action proposed. 
The current arrangements 
are considered effective 
given the shared nature of 
SIAS.  

3.1c Purpose, Authority and Responsibility 
 
Does the chief executive or equivalent 
undertake, countersign, contribute 
feedback to or review the performance 
appraisal of the CAE? 
 

 
 
The performance appraisal is carried out by the 
Director of Resources (HCC). 
 

Non-conformance  
 
No further action proposed. 
The appraisal process was 
carried out by the Director 
of Resources (HCC) with 
input from all partner chief 
finance officers. The 
current arrangements are 
considered effective given 
the shared nature of SIAS.  

P
age 18



APPENDIX D – AUDIT CHARTER 2021/2022 
 

14 
 

 
 

Audit Charter 2021/2022 
 
1. Introduction and Purpose 
 
1.1. Internal auditing is an independent and objective assurance and consulting 

activity. It is guided by a philosophy of adding value to the operations of an 
organisation. It assists a council in achieving its objectives and ultimately 
provides assurance to the public by systematically evaluating and improving the 
effectiveness and efficiency of risk management, control and governance 
processes. 
 

1.2. The purpose of the Shared Internal Audit Service (SIAS) is to provide 
independent, objective assurance and consulting services designed to add 
value and improve client operations. The mission of internal audit is to enhance 
and protect organisational value by providing risk-based and objective 
assurance, advice, and insight. SIAS helps clients accomplish its objectives by 
bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the 
effectiveness of governance, risk management, and control processes. 

 
2. Scope 
 
2.1. This Charter applies to all clients of the Shared Internal Audit Service (SIAS).  
 
3. Statutory Basis of Internal Audit 
 
3.1. Local government is statutorily required to have an internal audit function. The 

Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require that ‘a relevant authority must 
undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk 
management, control and governance processes, taking into account public 
sector internal auditing standards or guidance’. 

 
3.2. In addition, a council’s Chief Finance Officer has a statutory duty under Section 

151 of the Local Government Act 1972 to establish a clear framework for the 
proper administration of the authority’s financial affairs. To fulfil this 
requirement, the S151 Officer relies, amongst other sources, upon the work of 
internal audit.  

 
 

Page 19



APPENDIX D – AUDIT CHARTER 2021/2022 
 

15 
 

 
4. Role 
 
4.1. SIAS internal audit activity is overseen by each client council’s committee 

charged with fulfilling audit committee responsibilities herewith referred to as the 
Audit Committee.  As part of its oversight role, the Audit Committee is 
responsible for defining the responsibilities of SIAS via this Charter.   

 
4.2. SIAS may undertake additional consultancy activity requested by management.   

The Head of Assurance will determine such activity on a case by case basis 
assessing the skills and resources available. Significant additional consultancy 
activity not already included in the Internal Audit Plan will only be accepted and 
carried out following consultation with the Audit Committee.  

 
5. Professionalism 
 
5.1. SIAS governs itself by adherence to the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 

(PSIAS). These standards include the Definition of Internal Auditing, the Code 
of Ethics and the International Standards for the Professional Practice of 
Internal Auditing (IPPF). They set out the fundamental requirements for the 
professional practice of internal auditing and the evaluation of the effectiveness 
of an internal audit function.  
 

5.2. SIAS also recognises the Mission of Internal Audit as identified within the IPPF, 
‘To enhance and protect organisational value by providing risk-based and 
objective assurance, advice and insight’ and the Core Principles for the 
Professional Practice of Internal Auditing, which demonstrate an effective 
internal audit function, achieving internal audit’s mission. 
 

5.3. SIAS operations are guided by its operating procedures manual as well as 
applicable, Chartered Institute of Internal Auditors (CIIA) and Chartered Institute 
of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Position Papers, Practice 
Advisories and Guides, and relevant council policies and procedures, including 
compliance with the Bribery Act 2010.      

 
5.4. Should non-conformance with the PSIAS be identified, the Head of Assurance 

will investigate and disclose, in advance if possible, the exact nature of the non-
conformance, the reasons for it and, if applicable, its impact on a specific 
engagement or engagement outcome.  

 
6. Authority and Confidentiality 
 
6.1. Internal auditors are authorised full, free, and unrestricted access to any and all 

of a client’s records, physical property, and personnel as required to carry out 
an engagement. All client employees are requested to assist SIAS in fulfilling its 
roles and responsibilities. Information obtained during the course of an 
engagement is safeguarded and confidentiality respected.   

Page 20



APPENDIX D – AUDIT CHARTER 2021/2022 
 

16 
 

 
6.2. Internal auditors will only use information obtained to complete an engagement.  

It will not be used in a manner that would be contrary to the law, for personal 
gain, or detrimental to the legitimate and ethical objectives of the client 
organisation(s). Internal auditors will disclose all material facts known which if 
not disclosed could distort a report or conceal unlawful practice.  

 
7. Organisation 
 
7.1. The Head of Assurance and their representatives have free and unrestricted 

direct access to Senior Management, the Audit Committee, the Chief Executive 
/ Managing Director, the Chair of the Audit Committee and the External Auditor.  
The Head of Assurance will communicate with any and all of the above parties 
at both committee meetings and between meetings as appropriate.  

  
7.2. The Chairman of the Audit Committee has free and unrestricted direct access to 

both the Head of SIAS, and the Council’s External Auditor. 
 
7.3. The Head of Assurance is line managed by the host authorities Director of 

Resources who approves all decisions regarding the performance evaluation, 
appointment, or removal of the Head of Assurance, in consultation with the 
SIAS Board. Each client’s Section 151 Officer is asked to contribute to the 
annual appraisal of the Head of Assurance. 

 
8. Stakeholders 

 
The following groups are defined as stakeholders of SIAS: 

 
8.1. The Head of Assurance and the Head of The Shared Internal Audit Service, 

both suitably experienced and qualified (CCAB and / or CMIIA), are responsible 
for: 
• hiring, appraising and developing SIAS staff in accordance with the host 

authority’s HR guidance 
• maintaining up-to-date job descriptions which reflect the roles, 

responsibilities, skills, qualifications, and attributes required of SIAS staff 
• ensuring that SIAS staff possess or obtain the skills, knowledge and 

competencies (including ethical practice) needed to effectively perform SIAS 
engagements 

 
8.2. The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the effectiveness of SIAS 

and holding the Head of Assurance to account for delivery. This is achieved 
through the approval of the annual audit plan, approval of performance targets 
set by the SIAS Board and receipt of regular reports.  
 

8.3. The Audit Committee is also responsible for the effectiveness of the 
governance, risk and control environment within the Council, holding 
operational managers to account for its delivery. 

Page 21



APPENDIX D – AUDIT CHARTER 2021/2022 
 

17 
 

  
8.4. Where stated in its Terms of Reference, the Audit Committee provides an 

annual report to the Executive detailing the Committee’s activities through the 
year. In addition, and as required, the Committee ensures that there is 
appropriate communication of, and involvement in, internal audit matters from 
the wider publicly elected Member body.   
 

8.5. The Head of the Shared Internal Audit Service is responsible for ensuring that 
the final outcome of all Internal Audit reports is reported to all members of the 
Audit Committee and that where applicable Executive Members receive copies 
of all reports that pertain to their portfolio. 

     
8.6. Senior Management, defined as the Head of Paid Service, Chief Officers and 

their direct reports, are responsible for helping shape the programme of 
assurance work. This is achieved through analysis and review of key risks to 
achieving the Council’s objectives and priorities. 

 
8.7. The SIAS Board is the governance group charged with monitoring and 

reviewing the overall operation of SIAS and reporting to the Audit Committee its 
findings, including:  
• resourcing and financial performance 
• operational effectiveness through the monitoring performance indicators 
• the overall strategic direction of the shared service. 

 
9. Independence and Objectivity 
 
9.1. No element in the organisation should interfere with audit selection, scope, 

procedures, frequency, timing, or report content. This is necessary to ensure 
that internal audit maintains the necessary level of independence and 
objectivity. 

 
9.2. As well as being impartial and unbiased, internal auditors will have no direct 

operational responsibility or authority over any activity audited. They will not 
implement internal controls, develop procedures, install systems, prepare 
records, or engage in any other activity that might impair their judgment. 
 

9.3. When asked to undertake any additional roles/responsibilities outside internal 
auditing, the Head of Assurance will highlight to the Audit Committee any 
potential or perceived impairment to independence and objectivity having 
regard to the principles contained within the PSIAS Code of Ethics as well as 
any relevant requirements set out in other professional bodies to which the CAE 
may belong. The Audit Committee will approve and periodically review any 
safeguards put in place to limit any impairments to independence and 
objectivity. 

 
9.4. The Head of Assurance will confirm to the Audit Committee, at least annually, 

the organisational independence of SIAS.  

Page 22



APPENDIX D – AUDIT CHARTER 2021/2022 
 

18 
 

 
10. Conflicts of Interest 
 
10.1. Internal auditors will exhibit clear professional objectivity when gathering, 

evaluating, and communicating engagement information. When forming 
judgments, they will make a balanced assessment of all relevant circumstances 
and not be influenced by their own interests or the views and interests of others. 

 
10.2. Each auditor will comply with the ethical requirements of his/her professional 

body and proactively declare any potential conflict of interest, whether actual or 
apparent, prior to the start of an engagement. 

 
10.3. All auditors sign an annual declaration of interest to ensure that the allocation of 

work avoids conflict of interest. Auditors who undertake consultancy work or are 
new to the team will be prohibited from auditing in those areas where they have 
worked in the past year. Audits are rotated within the team to avoid over-
familiarity and complacency.  

 
10.4. SIAS procures an arrangement with an external partner to provide additional 

internal audit days on request. The external partner will be used to deliver 
engagements as directed by the Head of Assurance in particular providing 
advice and assistance where SIAS staff lack the required skills or knowledge.  

 
10.5. In the event of a real or apparent impairment of independence or objectivity, 

(acceptance of gifts, hospitality, inducements or other benefits) the Head of 
Assurance will investigate and report on the matter to appropriate parties.  

 
11. Responsibility and Scope 
 
11.1. The scope of SIAS encompasses, but is not limited to, the examination and 

evaluation of the adequacy and effectiveness of the organisation’s governance, 
risk management, and internal control processes (as they relate to the 
organisation’s priorities and objectives) and the promotion of appropriate ethics 
and values.   

 
11.2. Internal control and risk management objectives considered by internal audit 

extend to the organisation’s entire control and risk management environment 
and include: 
• consistency of operations or programs with established objectives and 

goals, and effective performance 
• effectiveness and efficiency of governance, operations and employment of 

resources 
• compliance with significant policies, plans, procedures, laws, and 

regulations 
• design, reliability and integrity of management and financial information 

processes, including the means to identify, measure, classify, and report 
such information 

Page 23



APPENDIX D – AUDIT CHARTER 2021/2022 
 

19 
 

• safeguarding of assets 
 
11.3. SIAS is well placed to provide advice and support on emerging risks and 

controls and will, if requested, deliver consulting and advisory services or 
evaluate specific operations.  

 
11.4. SIAS is responsible for reporting to the Audit Committee and senior 

management, significant risk exposures (including those to fraud addressed in 
conjunction with the Shared Anti-Fraud Service), control and governance issues 
and other matters that emerge from an engagement.   

 
11.5. Engagements are allocated to (an) internal auditor(s) with the appropriate skills, 

experience and competence. The auditor is then responsible for carrying out the 
work in accordance with the SIAS Operating Procedures Manual, and must 
consider the relevant elements of internal control, the needs and expectations 
of clients, the extent of work required to meet the engagement’s objectives, its 
cost effectiveness, and the probability of significant error or non-compliance.  

 
12. Role in Anti-Fraud 
 
12.1. The SIAS work programme, designed in consultation with Senior Management, 

the Audit Committee and, where applicable, the Shared Anti-Fraud Service, 
seeks to help deter fraud and corruption.   

 
12.2. In conjunction with the Shared Anti-Fraud Service, SIAS shares information with 

relevant partners to increase the likelihood of detecting fraudulent activity and 
reducing the risk of fraud to all. 

 
12.3. The Head of Assurance should be notified of all suspected or detected fraud, 

corruption or impropriety so that the impact upon control arrangements can be 
evaluated. 

 
13. Internal Audit Plan 
 
13.1. Following discussion with appropriate senior management, the Head of 

Assurance will submit a risk-based plan to the Audit Committee for review and 
approval. This will occur at least annually. The plan sets out the engagements 
agreed by Operational Directorate Boards and subsequently the Section 151 
Officer and Senior Management Board and demonstrates the priorities of both 
SIAS (the need to produce an annual internal audit opinion) and those of the 
organisation. Also included will be any relevant declarations of interest.  

 
13.2. The plan will be accompanied by details of the risk assessment approach used 

and will take into account the organisation’s assurance framework. Also shown 
will be the timing of an engagement, its budget in days, details of any 
contingency for new or changed risks, time for planning and reporting and a 
contribution to the development of SIAS.   

Page 24



APPENDIX D – AUDIT CHARTER 2021/2022 
 

20 
 

13.3. The plan will be subject to regular review in year and may be modified in 
response to changes in the organisation’s business, risks, operations, 
programmes, systems and controls. All significant changes to the approved 
internal audit plan will be communicated in the quarterly update reports. 

 
14. Reporting and Monitoring 
 
14.1. A draft written Terms of Reference will be prepared and issued to appropriate 

personnel at the start of an engagement. It will cover the intended objectives, 
scope and reporting mechanism and will be agreed with the client. Changes to 
the terms of reference during the course of the engagement may occur and will 
be agreed following consultation with the client. 

 
14.2. A report will be issued to management on completion of an engagement. It will 

include a reasoned opinion, details of the time period and scope within which it 
was prepared, management’s responses to specific risk prioritised findings and 
recommendations made and a timescale within which corrective action will be / 
has been taken. If recommended action is not to be taken, an explanation for 
this will also be included. 

 
14.3. SIAS will follow-up the implementation of agreed recommendations in line with 

the protocol at each client. As appropriate, the outcomes of this work will be 
reported to the audit committee and may be used to inform the risk-based 
planning of future audit work. Should follow-up activity identify any significant 
error or omission, this will be communicated by the Head of Assurance to all 
relevant parties. A revised internal audit opinion may be issued on the basis of 
follow-up activity. 

 
14.4. In consultation with senior management, the Head of Assurance will consider, 

on a risk-basis, any request made by external stakeholders for sight of an 
internal audit report.  

 
14.5. Quarterly update reports to the Audit Committee will detail the results of each 

engagement, including significant risk exposures and control issues. In addition, 
an annual report will be produced giving an opinion on the overall control, 
governance, and risk management environment (and any other issues judged 
relevant to the preparation of the Annual Governance Statement) with a 
summary of the work that supports the opinion. The Head of Assurance will also 
make a statement of conformance with PSIAS, and detail the nature and 
reasons for any impairments, qualifications or restrictions in scope for which the 
Committee should seek reassurances from management.  
 

15. Periodic Assessment 
 
15.1. PSIAS require the Head of Assurance and the SIAS Board to make 

arrangements for an independent review of the effectiveness of internal audit 

Page 25



APPENDIX D – AUDIT CHARTER 2021/2022 
 

21 
 

undertaken by a suitably knowledgeable, qualified and competent individual or 
organisation. This should occur at least every five years. 

 
15.2. The Head of Assurance will ensure that continuous efforts are made to improve 

the efficiency, effectiveness, and quality of SIAS. These will include the Quality 
Assurance and Improvement Programme, client feedback, appraisals and 
shared learning with the external audit partner as well as coaching, supervision, 
and documented review.  

 
15.3. A single review will be carried out to provide assurance to all SIAS partners with 

the outcomes included in the partner’s Annual Report.  
 
16. Review of the Audit Charter 
 
16.1. The Head of Assurance will review this charter annually and will present, to the 

first audit committee meeting of each financial year, any changes for approval.  
 
16.2. The Head of Assurance reviewed this Audit Charter in April 2021. It will next be 

reviewed in April 2022.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 26



APPENDIX D – AUDIT CHARTER 2021/2022 
 

22 
 

 
Glossary of Terms 

Audit Committee 

The governance group charged with independent 
assurance of the adequacy of the risk management 
framework, the internal control environment and the 
integrity of financial reporting. 

Management 

Operational officers of the Council responsible for 
creating corporate policy and organising, planning, 
controlling, and directing resources in order to 
achieve the objectives of that policy. Senior 
management is defined as the Head of Paid Service, 
Chief Officers and their direct reports. 

The SIAS Board 
The Board that comprises officer representatives 
from the client authorities and that is responsible for 
the governance of the SIAS partnership 

The Audit Plan 
The programme of risk-based work carried out by the 
Shared Internal Audit Service (SIAS) on behalf of its 
clients 

The Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards 

These standards, which are based on the mandatory 
elements of the Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA) 
International Professional Practices Framework 
(IPPF), are intended to promote further improvement 
in the professionalism, quality, consistency and 
effectiveness of internal audit across the public 
sector. They reaffirm the importance of robust, 
independent and objective internal audit 
arrangements to provide stakeholders with the key 
assurances they need to support them both in 
managing and overseeing the organisation and in 
producing the annual governance statement. 

Note: 

For readability, the term ‘internal audit activity’ as used in the PSIAS guidance has been replaced with 
‘SIAS’ in this Charter. 
 

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 Note the Internal Audit Progress Report for the period to 11 June 2021, 
 Note the implementation status of internal audit recommendations and 

the management update. 
 

 

 

  

INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 
      WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
JUNE 2021  

      

Page 29

Agenda Item 8



 

 
Page 2 

 

Contents 
 
1  Introduction and Background 

1.1  Purpose 
 1.2  Background 
 
2  Audit Plan Update 

2.1   Delivery of Audit Plan and Key Findings 
2.5  Proposed Amendments 
2.6   High Priority Recommendations 
2.9  Medium Priority Recommendations 
2.11 Performance Management 

 
Appendices 
 
A   Progress against the 2021/22 Audit Plan 
 
B   2021/22 Audit Plan Start Dates Agreed with 

Management  
 
C   Implementation Status of High Priority 

Recommendations as at 17 June 2021 
 
D Implementation Status of Outstanding Medium 

Priority Recommendations as at 17 June 2021 
 
E Assurance and Finding Definitions 2021/22 
 
F Assurance and Finding Definitions 2020/21 
  

Page 30



 

 
Page 3 

 

1. Introduction and Background 
 

Purpose of Report 
 

1.1 This report details: 
 
a) Progress made by the Shared Internal Audit Service (SIAS) in delivering 

the Council’s Annual Audit Plan for 2021/22 as at 11 June 2021. 
b) Details of changes to the planned start dates of audits from the approved 

2021/22 Audit Plan. 
c) Proposed amendments to the 2021/22 Annual Audit Plan report. 
d) The implementation status of previously agreed audit recommendations. 
e) An update on performance management information as at 11 June 2021. 
 
Background 
 

1.2 The 2021/22 Annual Audit Plan was approved by the Audit Committee at its 
meeting on 17 March 2021. 

 
1.3 The Audit Committee receives periodic updates of progress against the 

Annual Internal Audit Plan. This is the first report on the delivery of the 
2021/22 Internal Audit Plan. 

 
1.4 The work of Internal Audit is required to be reported to a Member Body so that 

the Council has an opportunity to review and monitor an essential component 
of corporate governance and gain assurance that its internal audit provision is 
fulfilling its statutory obligations. It is considered good practice that progress 
reports also include proposed amendments to the agreed Annual Audit Plan. 
 

2. Audit Plan Update 
 
 Delivery of Audit Plan and Key Audit Findings 
 
2.1 As at 11 June 2021, 19% of the 2021/22 Audit Plan days had been delivered.   
 
2.2 The following 2020/21 final reports have been issued since 5 March 2021 

(cut-off date for the SIAS Update Report for 17 March 2021 Audit Committee): 
 

Audit Title Date of Issue Assurance 
Level 

Number of 
Recommendations 

Housing Benefit April 2021 Satisfactory 2 Medium, 2 Low 

Streetscene Contract 
Management April 2021 Good 2 Low 

Housing Rents March 2021 Satisfactory 2 Medium, 3 Low 

Page 31



 

 
Page 4 

 

Audit Title Date of Issue Assurance 
Level 

Number of 
Recommendations 

Climate Change and 
Sustainability March 2021 Satisfactory 1 Medium 

Council Website March 2021 Satisfactory 3 Medium 

Lone Worker Devices March 2021 Good 1 Low 

Payroll March 2021 Satisfactory 2 Medium 

Business World  March 2021 Satisfactory 1 Medium 

Building Services – 
Asset Management March 2021 Limited 1 High, 1 Medium, 1 

Low 

Building Services – 
Regulatory 
Compliance 

March 2021 Satisfactory 1 Medium 

 
2.3 The following 2021/22 final reports have been issued since 1 April 2021: 

 
Audit Title Date of Issue Assurance 

Level 
Number of 
Recommendations 

Breathing Space April 2021 Substantial None 

Microsoft Teams April 2021 Reasonable 1 Medium, 1 Low 
 

2.4 To help the Committee assess progress in delivering the 2021/22 Audit Plan, 
Appendix B details agreed start dates. These dates were agreed with 
management and resources allocated accordingly. This schedule was 
designed to facilitate smoother delivery of the audit plan through the year. 
 
Proposed Amendments to Audit Plan 
 

2.5 SIAS has returned a total of 6.5 days to contingency as a result of the time 
required for 2020/21 Projects Requiring Completion being less than originally 
anticipated during the setting of the 2021/22 plan. 

 
High Priority Recommendations 
 

2.6 Members will be aware that a Final Audit Report is issued when it has been 
agreed by management. This includes an agreement to implement the 
recommendations that have been made. It is Internal Audit’s responsibility to 
bring to Members’ attention the non-implementation of high priority 
recommendations. It is the responsibility of officers to implement the 
recommendations by the agreed date. 
 

Page 32



 

 
Page 5 

 

2.7 We have made one high priority recommendation since our last progress 
report, this relating to the area of Building Services Asset Management. The 
recommendation relates to condition surveys and inspections. 
 

2.8 An update to the implementation status of this recommendation has been 
included in Appendix C. 
 
Medium Priority Recommendations  
 

2.9 It has been agreed with Council management that SIAS will follow up all high 
and medium priority recommendations resulting from internal audit reports. 
The table below outlines the ‘Medium’ priority recommendations that were 
followed up during this cycle: 
 

Total number of 
recommendations 
followed up in 
this period 

Implemented 
/ No Longer 
Applicable 

Partially 
implemented 
– revised 
date agreed 

Target date 
(or revised 
target date) 
not yet 
reached 

No update 
provided 
by action 
owner 

14 6 1 7 0 

% 43 7 50 0 
 

2.10 Appendix D details the implementation status of all ‘Medium’ priority 
recommendations that have not been fully implemented by the original target 
date, or for which no management response has been received at the date of 
this report. Appendix D has been abridged to fit this Progress Report, and the 
full database is maintained on a shared drive. This can be supplied by Council 
management on request, should it be required.  
 
Performance Management 
 

2.11 Performance indicators and associated targets are approved by the SIAS 
Board on an annual basis. As at 11 June 2021, actual performance for 
Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council against the targets that can be monitored in 
year is set out in the table below: 

 
Performance Indicator Annual 

Target 
Profiled 

Target to 11 
June 2021 

Actual to  
11 June 2021 

1. Planned Days – percentage of 
actual billable days against 
planned chargeable days 
completed (excluding unused 
contingency) 

95% 
22% 

(65 / 293.5 
days) 

19% 
(57 / 293.5 days) 

2. Planned Projects – percentage 
of actual completed projects to 
draft report stage against planned 
completed projects 

95% 
12% 

(3 / 25 
projects) 

8% 
(2 / 25 projects) 

Page 33



 

 
Page 6 

 

3. Client Satisfaction with 
Conduct of the Audit – 
percentage of client satisfaction 
questionnaires returned at 
‘satisfactory’ level (39/65) 

100% 100% 

67%  
(3 returned – 1 
with score of 

38/65) 

4. Number of High Priority Audit 
Recommendations agreed 95% 95% 100% 

(1 made) 
 

2.12 In addition, the performance targets listed below are annual in nature.  
Performance against these targets will be reported in the 2021/22 Head of 
Assurance’s Annual Report: 
 
5. Annual Plan – prepared in time to present to the March meeting of each 
Audit Committee. If there is no March meeting, then the plan should be 
prepared for the first meeting of the financial year. 
 
6. Head of Assurance’s Annual Report – presented at the Audit Committee’s 
first meeting of the civic year. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 34



APPENDIX A – PROGRESS AGAINST THE 2021/22 AUDIT PLAN AS AT 11 JUNE 2021 

 
Page 7 

 

2021/22 SIAS Audit Plan 

AUDITABLE AREA LEVEL OF 
ASSURANCE 

C 
RECS 

H 
RECS 

M 
RECS 

L 
RECS 

AUDIT 
PLAN 
DAYS 

LEAD 
AUDITOR 

ASSIGNED 

BILLABLE 
DAYS 

COMPLETED 
STATUS / 

COMMENTS 

Key Financial Systems 
Self-Service - Revenues      8 SIAS 1 In Planning 
Risk Based Verification      8 SIAS 0 Allocated 
Salary Budgeting and 
Monitoring      10  0 Not Yet Allocated 

ResourceLink and 
Expenses      15  0 Not Yet Allocated 

Housing Rents      8  0 Not Yet Allocated 
Corporate Audits 
COVID-19 Recovery      15  0 Not Yet Allocated 
COVID-19 Response      15 SIAS 0 Allocated 
Business Recovery      15 SIAS 10 In Fieldwork 
Climate Emergency      10  0 Not Yet Allocated 
Operational Audits 
Housing Complaints 
Handling      10 SIAS 0 Allocated 

Community Infrastructure 
Levy      10 SIAS 0 Allocated 

DFG Certification      2 SIAS 0 Allocated 
Affordable Housing      10  0 Not Yet Allocated 
Voids Management      10  0 Not Yet Allocated 
Now Housing – 
Shareholder Reporting      10  0 Not Yet Allocated 

P
age 35



APPENDIX A – PROGRESS AGAINST THE 2021/22 AUDIT PLAN AS AT 11 JUNE 2021 

 
Page 8 

 

AUDITABLE AREA LEVEL OF 
ASSURANCE 

C 
RECS 

H 
RECS 

M 
RECS 

L 
RECS 

AUDIT 
PLAN 
DAYS 

LEAD 
AUDITOR 

ASSIGNED 

BILLABLE 
DAYS 

COMPLETED 
STATUS / 

COMMENTS 

Building Services Asset 
Management      3 SIAS 0.5 In Fieldwork 

Training Budgets      10 SIAS 0 Allocated 
Breathing Space Substantial 0 0 0 0 4 SIAS 4 Final Report Issued 
LA Test and Trace Support 
Grant      2 SIAS 1 In Fieldwork 

Procurement / Contracts 
Housing Maintenance 
Procurement – Continuous 
Assurance 

     16 SIAS 5.5 In Fieldwork 

Governance Audits 
Modernisation Programme 
Governance      10 SIAS 9 Quality Review 

Risk Management Audits 
Risk Management 
Framework      10  0 Not Yet Allocated 

IT Audits 
Cloud Computing      12 BDO 0 Allocated 
Microsoft Teams Reasonable 0 0 1 1 10 BDO 10 Final Report Issued 
Data Breaches      10 BDO 0 Allocated 
Shared Learning and Joint Reviews 
Joint Reviews      3  0 Through Year 
Shared Learning      2  0 Through Year 
Contingency & Ad Hoc Activity 

P
age 36



APPENDIX A – PROGRESS AGAINST THE 2021/22 AUDIT PLAN AS AT 11 JUNE 2021 

 
Page 9 

 

AUDITABLE AREA LEVEL OF 
ASSURANCE 

C 
RECS 

H 
RECS 

M 
RECS 

L 
RECS 

AUDIT 
PLAN 
DAYS 

LEAD 
AUDITOR 

ASSIGNED 

BILLABLE 
DAYS 

COMPLETED 
STATUS / 

COMMENTS 

Contingency & Ad Hoc 
Activity      6.5    

Strategic Support 
Head of Internal Audit 
Opinion 2020/21      3  3 Complete 

Audit Committee      6  1.5 Through Year 
Client Meetings      6  1.5 Through Year 
Progress Monitoring      10  2.5 Through Year 
SIAS Development      5  5 Complete 
2022/23 Audit Planning      8  0 Complete 
Recommendations Follow 
Up      6  1.5 Complete for Q1 

2020/21 Projects requiring completion 
Finalisation of Projects      1.5  1 Ongoing 
Total – Welwyn Hatfield 
B.C. 

 0 0 1 1 300  57  

 
Recommendation (Recs) Priority Key: 
C = Critical 
H = High 
M = Medium 
L= Low 
 

P
age 37



APPENDIX B – 2021/22 AUDIT PLAN START DATES AGREED WITH MANAGEMENT  

 
Page 10 

 

Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4 

Building Services Asset 
Management Follow Up 
In Fieldwork 

COVID-19 Response 
Allocated 

Resourcelink and Expenses Housing Rents 

Business Recovery 
In Fieldwork 

Risk Based Verification 
Allocated 

Now Housing – Shareholder 
Reporting 

Data Breaches 

Microsoft Teams 
Final Report Issued 

Affordable Housing Salary Budgeting and Monitoring Climate Emergency 

Modernisation Programme 
Governance 
Quality Review 

Self-Service Revenues (Moved 
from Q1) 
In Planning 

COVID-19 Recovery Risk Management Framework 

Local Authority Test and Trace 
Support Grant Certification 
In Fieldwork 

Training Budgets 
Allocated 

Cloud Computing Community Infrastructure Levy 
(Moved from Q1) 

Breathing Space (Moved from Q2) 
Final Report Issued 

Housing Complaints Handling 
Allocated 

Voids Management  

2020/21 Projects Requiring 
Completion 

DFG Certification 
Allocated 

  

Housing Maintenance Contract Procurement – Continuous Assurance 

  AUDITS TO BE CONFIRMED FOR QUARTER 3 AND 4 IN SEPTEMBER 
2021 

 

P
age 38



APPENDIX C – IMPLEMENTATION STATUS OF HIGH PRIORITY RECOMMENDATIONS  

 
Page 11 

 

 
   No. Report Title / 

Date of Issue 
Recommendation Management Response Responsible 

Officer 
Implementation 
Date 

History of Management 
Comments (Last 12 
months) 

Status of 
Progress 

1. Building 
Services Asset 
Management 
(March 2021) 

Building Maintenance – 
Condition Surveys and 
Inspections 
 
a) We recommend a 
programme of inspections 
is introduced to ensure 
that all major defects or 
failures identified from the 
most recent surveyor 
inspections have been 
resolved appropriately and 
completed in a timely 
manner.  
 
b) We also recommend 
that the records for 
condition surveys / 
inspections are amended 
to record: 
• Date and Contractor 

for Works order raised, 
• Estimated costs, 
• Works completed 

date, 
• Invoiced costs. 
 
c) This will add value to 
the survey / inspection 
records for use in 

a) The programme to 
renew the condition 
surveys is under way and 
will progress on a priority 
basis. 
The main operational 
buildings which present the 
highest risks to the council 
are now completed which 
now allows a programme of 
works based on the 
recommendations to be 
developed.  
 
b) Without these surveys 
we are unaware of the 
costs that will be involved 
in the immediate, short and 
long term, therefore we will 
now be putting a 
programme together and 
requesting the budget is 
made available for this. 
 
c) The re-structure of the 
team in 2019 saw 
additional resource being 
made available within the 
Premises team. Two of 
these additional posts were 

Service 
Manager 
(Building 
Services) 

a) April 2022 
b) April 2021 
c) June 2021 
d) December 

2021 

June 2021: 
The conditions surveys 
have all been 
commissioned, and 
some of these have now 
been returned to the 
council. Once all 
received, the planned 
works programme will 
be drawn up. This will 
then allow the team to 
align requirements with 
the budget setting 
process and 5 year 
capital programme. 

Partially 
Implemented 

P
age 39



APPENDIX C – IMPLEMENTATION STATUS OF HIGH PRIORITY RECOMMENDATIONS  

 
Page 12 

 

   No. Report Title / 
Date of Issue 

Recommendation Management Response Responsible 
Officer 

Implementation 
Date 

History of Management 
Comments (Last 12 
months) 

Status of 
Progress 

budgeting and 
management 
maintenance overview. 
 
d) We recommend that 
the Council consider 
introducing a Buildings 
and Premises 
Maintenance Policy that 
should include direction 
on the frequency of 
condition surveys and 
inspections on the 
Councils buildings and 
premises. 

recruited to in September 
2020, which now allows for 
cyclical, recorded 
inspection regimes to be in 
place. 
 
d) The asset management 
strategy is being 
developed, along with the 
associated policies, 
procedures and processes. 
 
Note: The current members 
of the team and framework 
contractors have 
substantial knowledge of 
the buildings. The overall 
condition is known, and 
unforeseen works are rare. 
We continuously put 
forward bids for capital 
funding to the portfolio to 
ensure the longevity of the 
buildings, but due to 
financial efficiencies the 
authority needs to provide, 
the bids are not always 
successful. 

 
 

P
age 40



APPENDIX D – IMPLEMENTATION STATUS OF MEDIUM PRIORITY RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
Page 13 

 

 
Report Title 
and Date 

Recommendation Management Response Original 
Target Date 

Responding 
Officer 

Management Action Taken to 
Date 

Revised Target Date 
and Reason 

Climate 
Change and 
Sustainability 
March 2021 

Officer Working Group 
meetings 
 
Actions should be given a 
nominated officer and 
deadline. These should be 
followed up at the 
subsequent meeting 
whereby the officer can 
provide an update on 
progress. 

Economic Development 
Officer will chair Climate 
Change Officer Group on 
interim basis. 
 
Head of Planning will 
chair Climate Change 
Officer Group from 8 
June onwards. 
 
The Climate Change 
Action Plan identifies 
where teams are 
responsible for delivery 
identified actions. 
 
Climate Change Officer 
Group agendas and 
minutes will identify 
teams/individuals 
responsible for delivering 
identified action. 
 

June 2021 Economic 
Development 
Officer 

The new Head of Planning is 
in post and will take over 
Chairing the CC Officer group 
meeting.  The WHBC Climate 
Change Strategy and Action 
Plan has been produced 
and   agreed by 
Members.  The CC Action 
Plan identifies where teams 
are responsible for delivery of 
identified actions and officers 
provide updates at the CC 
officer group.  The council 
now has a nominated officer 
for each of the four HCCSP 
sub groups, who will support 
delivery of the Hertfordshire 
action plans within agreed 
deadlines.     

30 September 2021 
 
The revised target 
date recognises the 
period between the 
previous Head of 
Planning departing 
and the new Head of 
Planning starting. The 
revised target date will 
allow the Head of 
Planning to chair a 
meeting and fully 
implement the 
recommendation. 

 
 

P
age 41



APPENDIX E – ASSURANCE AND FINDINGS DEFINITIONS 2021/22 

 
Page 14 

 

Assurance Level Definition 

Substantial A sound system of governance, risk management and control exists, with internal controls operating 
effectively and being consistently applied to support the achievement of objectives in the area audited. 

Reasonable 
There is a generally sound system of governance, risk management and control in place. Some issues, 
non-compliance or scope for improvement were identified which may put at risk the achievement of 
objectives in the area audited. 

Limited 
 Significant gaps, weaknesses or non-compliance were identified. Improvement is required to the 
system of governance, risk management and control to effectively manage risks to the achievement of 
objectives in the area audited. 

No 
 Immediate action is required to address fundamental gaps, weaknesses or non-compliance 
identified. The system of governance, risk management and control is inadequate to effectively manage 
risks to the achievement of objectives in the area audited.  

    

Priority Level Definition 

Critical 
Audit findings which, in the present state, represent a serious risk to the organisation as a whole, i.e. 
reputation, financial resources and / or compliance with regulations. Management action to implement 
the appropriate controls is required immediately. 

High 
Audit findings indicate a serious weakness or breakdown in control environment, which, if untreated by 
management intervention, is highly likely to put achievement of core service objectives at risk. Remedial 
action is required urgently. 

Medium Audit findings which, if not treated by appropriate management action, are likely to put achievement of 
some of the core service objectives at risk. Remedial action is required in a timely manner. 

Low  
Audit findings indicate opportunities to implement good or best practice, which, if adopted, will enhance 
the control environment. The appropriate solution should be implemented as soon as is practically 
possible. 

P
age 42



APPENDIX F – ASSURANCE AND FINDINGS DEFINITIONS 2020/21 

 
Page 15 

 

Assurance Level Definition 

Good 
The design and operation of the internal control framework is effective, thereby ensuring that the key 
risks in scope are being well managed and core objectives will likely be achieved. There are minor 
reportable audit findings. 

Satisfactory The internal control framework is largely working well in managing the key risks in scope, with some 
audit findings related to the current arrangements.   

Limited 
The system of internal control is only partially effective, with important audit findings in key areas. 
Improvement in the design and/or operation of the control environment is necessary to gain assurance 
risks are being managed to an acceptable level, and core objectives will be achieved. 

No The system of internal control has serious gaps, and controls are not effective in managing the key risks 
in scope. It is highly unlikely that core objectives will be met without urgent management intervention. 

    

Priority Level Definition 

Critical  
Audit findings which, in the present state, represent a serious risk to the organisation as a 
whole, i.e. reputation, financial resources and / or compliance with regulations. Management 
action to implement the appropriate controls is required immediately. 

High  
Audit findings indicate a serious weakness or breakdown in control environment, which, if 
untreated by management intervention, is highly likely to put achievement of core service 
objectives at risk. Remedial action is required urgently. 

Medium  
Audit findings which, if not treated by appropriate management action, are likely to put 
achievement of some of the core service objectives at risk. Remedial action is required in a 
timely manner. 

Low  
Audit findings indicate opportunities to implement good or best practice, which, if adopted, will 
enhance the control environment. The appropriate solution should be implemented as soon as 
is practically possible. 

 

P
age 43



T
his page is intentionally left blank



- 1 - 

Part I 
Main author: Alison Marston 
All Wards 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
AUDIT COMMITTEE – 28 JUNE 2021 
REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

DRAFT ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2020/21 

1 Executive Summary 

1.1. This report presents the Draft Annual Governance Statement (AGS) for the 
financial year 2020/21 (attached at Appendix A), which has been compiled in 
accordance with best practice set out in the CIPFA / SOLACE Guidance 
Framework “Delivering Good Governance in Local Government”. 

2 Recommendation(s) 

2.1  That the Audit Committee:- 
(a) Considers and, once satisfied, approves the Draft Annual Governance 

Statement. 
(b) Authorises the Chief Executive, in conjunction with the Leader of the 

Council, to make any subsequent amendments to the Draft Annual 
Governance Statement necessitated by the comments made by the Audit 
Committee, 

(c) Recommends its certification by the Leader of the Council and the Chief 
Executive. 

3. Explanation 
3.1. The CIPFA / SOLACE Guidance Framework emphasises that the AGS is a key 

corporate document. The most senior Member and the most senior Officer have 
joint responsibility as signatories for its accuracy and completeness.  

3.2. The signatories need to ensure that the AGS accurately reflects the governance 
framework for which they are responsible. In order to achieve this, they are likely 
to rely on many sources of assurance, e.g. Chief Officers, Members, Senior 
Managers and the Council’s External Auditors and other review agencies. 

3.3. As in previous years, the production of the AGS has been co-ordinated by the 
Governance Group, an officer group chaired by the Chief Executive in her capacity 
as Head of Paid Service. 

3.4. The Group’s membership also comprises: 
• Corporate Director (Public Protection, Planning & Governance) 
• Corporate Director (Housing & Communities) 
• Head of Law & Administration – the Council’s Monitoring Officer 
• Head of Resources (Section 151 Officer) 
• Legal Services Manager (Deputy Monitoring Officer) 
• Governance Services Manager (Deputy Monitoring Officer) 
• Service Manager (Financial Services) (deputy Section 151 Officer) 
• Principal Governance Officer  

Page 45

Agenda Item 10



- 2 - 

The Governance Group has considered the following sources of assurance:- 
 

Internal 
• existing policies and procedures 
• internal review activity (at both Member and officer level) 
• Heads of Service’s Management Assurance Statements 
• the work of the Shared Internal Audit Service, Performance Management, 

Procurement and Risk Management 

External 
• the work of the Council’s External Auditors 

3.5. Members are also asked to note that the AGS is subject to review by the Council’s 
External Auditors.  

Implications 

3 Legal Implication(s) 

3.1 Local authorities are required to prepare a governance statement in accordance 
with the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015.  

4 Financial Implication(s) 

There are no direct financial implications.  

5 Risk Management Implications 

Failure to produce an annual governance statement would be in breach of regulatory 
requirements and have reputational implications..  

6 Security and Terrorism Implication(s) 

6.1 There are none. 

7 Procurement Implication(s) 

There are none. 

8 Climate Change Implication(s) 

There are none. 

9 Human Resources Implication(s) 

There are none. 

10 Health and Wellbeing Implication(s) 

There are none. 

11 Communication and Engagement Implication(s) 

A copy of the completed statement is placed on the council website. 

12 Link to Corporate Priorities 

The subject of this report is linked to the Council’s Corporate Priority to engage with our 
communities. 

Page 46



- 3 - 

13 Equality and Diversity 

14.1  An EqIA was not completed because this report does not propose changes to 
existing service-related policies or the development of new service-related policies. 
 

 
Name of author Alison Marston  
Title Governance Services Manager 
Date 14 June 2021 
 
 
 

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE 

STATEMENT FOR THE 

FINANCIAL YEAR 

2020/21 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
  

Page 49



Contents 
 

1. Background .......................................................................................................................... 1 

2. Scope of Responsibility ......................................................................................................... 2 

3. The Purpose of the Governance Framework .......................................................................... 3 

4. Review of Effectiveness ........................................................................................................ 4 

Behaving with Integrity ................................................................................................................... 4 

Openness ........................................................................................................................................ 6 

Engaging Comprehensively with Institutional Stakeholders .......................................................... 6 

Engaging with Individual Citizens and Service Users Effectively..................................................... 7 

Defining Outcomes ......................................................................................................................... 7 

Sustainable Economic, Social and Environmental Benefits ............................................................ 7 

Determining Courses of Action (Interventions) .............................................................................. 8 

Interventions ................................................................................................................................... 8 

Optimising the Achievement of Intended Outcomes ..................................................................... 8 

Developing the Council’s Capacity .................................................................................................. 9 

Developing the Capability of the Council’s Leadership and Other Individuals ............................. 10 

Managing Risks ............................................................................................................................. 10 

Managing Performance................................................................................................................. 11 

Robust Internal Control................................................................................................................. 11 

Managing Data .............................................................................................................................. 11 

Strong Public Financial Management ........................................................................................... 12 

Implementing Good Practice in Transparency .............................................................................. 13 

Implementing Good Practice in Reporting ................................................................................... 13 

Assurance and Effective Accountability ........................................................................................ 13 

5. Action Plan ......................................................................................................................... 14 

6. Conclusion .......................................................................................................................... 14 

7. Certification ....................................................................................................................... 14 

 

 

Page 50



Page 1   June/July 2021 

1. Background 
 

1.1. 2020/21 began in the midst of a global pandemic, with the Covid-19 virus causing 
emergency responses to be triggered and lockdown measures introduced across 
the UK from 23 March 2020. These affected all the services that the Council 
delivers.  A significant amount of work was undertaken by the Council to ensure 
core services continued and service delivery was adapted in response to the 
latest national guidance. Alongside this, the Council was able to prioritise 
workloads to ensure the most vulnerable in our communities were supported, and 
that residents and businesses were able to access the help available to them. 
The initial impact to our priorities and objectives, along with the actions taken 
were detailed in our report to Special Council on 6 May 2020. 

1.2. Covid-19 has had a significant adverse effect on the economy, whilst at the same 
time increasing pressures on the services that the council delivers.  The council 
has faced significant financial pressures in service areas such as homelessness 
and rough sleepers, at the same time there is a substantial reduction in income 
across our services.  

1.3. The direct financial impact for 2020/21 was £3.472m, made up of increased costs 
on areas such as benefit and homelessness, along with losses in key income 
streams such as leisure and parking. This has been funded through additional 
grant income reserved from the government, along with £222k of the council’s 
own balances, which had been set aside at the start of the pandemic in 2019/20.  

1.4. Whilst the government has announced a smaller pandemic support grant for 
2021/22, and an extension to the sales fees and charges protection grant for one 
quarter, the scale of the impact on the economy and public finances resulting 
from Covid-19 in the medium-to long-term is unknown.  

1.5. The details of our financial impact due to Covid-19 are shown in the Revenue 
Outtrun Report 2021-22 report presented to the 15 June 2021 Cabinet. 

  

Page 51

https://democracy.welhat.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=151&MId=1265


Page 2   June/July 2021 

2. Scope of Responsibility 
 

2.1. Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is 
conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards and that public 
money is safeguarded and properly accounted for and used economically, 
efficiently and effectively. 

2.2. The Council also has a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make 
arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way in which its functions 
are exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness. 

2.3. In discharging this overall responsibility, the Council is responsible for putting in 
place proper arrangements for the governance of its affairs, facilitating the 
effective exercise of its functions, which includes arrangements for the 
management of risk. 

2.4. This Governance Statement explains how the Council has maintained sound 
governance during the financial year 2020/21. Regulation 6(1)(a) of the Accounts 
and Audit (England) Regulations 2015 requires a local authority to conduct a 
review at least once a year of the effectiveness of its system of internal control 
and to include a statement on this review with any published Statement of 
Accounts. Regulation 6(1)(b) requires that for a local authority in England that the 
statement is an annual governance statement.  

2.5. Efforts to drive improvement in financial management of councils is being led by 
The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) though their 
Financial Management Code. Whilst the Code is not statutory, the Council is 
committed to meeting the standards set in the Code and making the necessary 
changes to ensure best practice. 

2.6. The Council also had a duty under Coronavirus Act 2020, The Local Authorities 
and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority and 
Police and Crime Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 2020 to 
make arrangements for council meetings to be held remotely, with provision for 
public and press access. The Regulations were applicable between the 4 April 
2020 and 7 May 2021 (inclusive). 

2.7. The Council introduced new scrutiny arrangements in June 2020, replacing the 
three previous committees (Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 
Social Overview and Scrutiny Committee and Resource Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee) with one overarching Overview and Scrutiny Committee to enable 
Members to better scrutinise the Council’s operation, policy making and 
decisions, including Executive Member Decision Notices. 

 
  

Page 52



Page 3   June/July 2021 

3. The Purpose of the Governance Framework 
 
3.1. The governance framework, which has been in place for the financial year 

2020/21 comprises the systems and processes as well as the culture and values, 
by which the Council is directed and controlled and through which it accounts to, 
engages with and leads the community. 

3.2. The governance framework enables the Council to monitor the achievement of 
its strategic objectives and to consider whether those objectives have led to the 
delivery of appropriate and cost-effective services. 

3.3. The system of internal control is a significant part of this framework and is 
designed to manage risk to a reasonable level. However, it cannot eliminate all 
risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives and therefore can only 
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. 

3.4. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to 
identify and prioritise the risks (both positive and negative) to the achievement of 
the Council’s policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those 
risks being realised and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. 

3.5. The Council has an approved Local Code of Governance, which sets out its 
commitment to the principles of good governance. The code reflects the 
“Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: Framework produced by the 
Chartered Institute of Public Finance (CIPFA) and the Society of Local Authority 
Chief Executives (SOLACE) in 2016.  

 
  

Page 53

http://www.welhat.gov.uk/local-code-of-governance


Page 4   June/July 2021 

4. Review of Effectiveness 
 
4.1. The Council is required to prepare an annual governance statement in order to 

report publicly on the extent to which they comply with the Local Code of 
Governance. To achieve good governance, the Council should be able to 
demonstrate that its governance structures comply with the principles contained 
in the framework document. 

4.2. This review is informed by those Members and Officers, who have the 
responsibility for the development and maintenance of the governance 
environment. The following paragraphs set out the Council’s assessment of the 
key elements of the governance framework for 2020/21.  

4.3. To enable the reader to access further information, links have been provided to 
key documents and topics relevant to the governance framework. These are 
provided to limit the need for lengthy descriptions and enable the reader to 
choose the documents they wish to view. 

4.4. Behaving with Integrity 
The Council’s political and managerial leadership take the lead in establishing a 
culture that encourages a climate of openness, support and respect. These 
senior managers and elected members ensure that the required policies are in 
place and are monitored. 
The Constitution sets out how the Council operates, how decisions are made and 
the procedures that are followed to ensure that these are efficient, transparent 
and accountable to the local community. Some of these procedures are required 
by law, whilst others are adopted by the Council. A full review of the Council’s 
constitution was undertaken in the previous year, with a specific objective to 
modernise the constitution whilst ensuring it remains a document that is fit for 
purpose. The Council adopted a significantly revised Constitution on 23 June 
2020.  
The Constitution sets out: 

• The Code of Conduct for Members 
• The Local Code of Guidance for Members and officers involved in planning 

matters 
• The Officers Code of Conduct 
• The Protocol on Member/Officer Relations 

 

A link to the Constitution is shared with each Member when they are first elected 
to the Council and is also available on the Council’s website. 

4.5. Demonstrating a Strong Commitment to Ethical Values 
The Council has an agreed Code of Conduct for its Members that reflects the 
accepted principles of public life. It is contained in Part 5 of the Constitution. All 
elected Members undertake that they will observe the Code of Conduct. Training 
on the Governance framework is provided to all Members of the Council. A fully 
revised Code of Conduct was approved by the Council on 6 May 2020, which 
included the Council’s One Team ethos and a Social Media protocol.  

Page 54

https://www.welhat.gov.uk/media/687/Local-Code-of-Governance/pdf/Local_Code_of_Governance_-_June_2018.pdf?m=636664887871730000
https://www.welhat.gov.uk/media/687/Local-Code-of-Governance/pdf/Local_Code_of_Governance_-_June_2018.pdf?m=636664887871730000
https://democracy.welhat.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=285&MId=1223&Ver=4&Info=1
https://democracy.welhat.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=285&MId=1223&Ver=4&Info=1


Page 5   June/July 2021 

However the Local Government Association published a Model Councillor Code 
of Conduct (the Model Code) in December 2020. Whilst much of the substance 
contained in the Model Code had been captured in the Code of Conduct adopted 
by the Council in May 2020, the Council believed the addition of a requirement 
for Members to cooperate with investigations and the strong message to the 
public that Members were aspiring to best practice were seen as worthwhile 
benefits for adopting the new Model Code. The Council agreed to adopt the 
Model Code on 17 March 2021. 
The Standards Committee is responsible for assessing and determining 
complaints against alleged breaches of the Code of Conduct. The role and 
function of the Committee, is amongst, other things, to promote and maintain 
high standards of conduct by Members and Co-Opted Members. The Monitoring 
Officer carries overall responsibility for legal compliance with the Code. 
The Standards Committee is responsible for arranging training and maintaining 
high standards for Members. The Chair of the Committee must ensure that all 
Members and co-opted voting members of the Council and the Town and Parish 
Council’s within the Borough have undergone standards training. 
Members are required to register their financial and other interests in accordance 
with the Localism Act 2011. Members are also required to declare these interests 
at each meeting where the matter under discussion has the potential to affect 
that interest. 
An employee Code of Conduct is contained in the Constitution that sets out the 
requirements of staff to abide by its contents. Each employee is required to 
comply with the Employee Code of Conduct with further guidance available from 
senior managers.  

4.6. Respecting the Rule of Law 
The Constitution contains four key governance documents: 

• Standing Orders 
• Scheme of Delegation 
• Financial Regulations  
• Contract Standing Orders 

 
These documents set the framework for the conduct of the business of the 
Council. 
Codes of Conduct set out the standards of behaviour that are expected of the 
Council’s Members and officers. Breaches of these rules are dealt with under the 
Members Code of Conduct complaints process or, in the case of officers, under 
the Council’s disciplinary procedures.  
The Whistleblowing Policy contains an external and internal whistleblowing 
number as well as a whistleblowing email address. The policy covers any 
malpractice or wrongdoing by any Member or employee of the Council as well as 
any contractor, supplier, consultant or partner of the Council in the course of their 
work for the Council. 
The Council has a Monitoring Officer as required by the Local Government & 
Housing Act 1989. The Constitution sets out how decisions are made to be legally 
admissible.  

Page 55

https://democracy.welhat.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=152
https://www.welhat.gov.uk/councillors/info/register-of-interest
https://www.welhat.gov.uk/media/681/Whistleblowing-Policy/pdf/Whistleblowing_Policy_at_November_20174.pdf?m=636517146812700000


Page 6   June/July 2021 

 

4.7. Openness 
The Council is committed to openness and publishes information online in 
accordance with the Local Government Transparency Code and in accordance 
with the Freedom of Information Act 2000 also publishes a Publication Scheme.  
The majority of Committee reports are considered in open session with a minimal 
number of reports considered in closed session. Reports have a formal structure 
covering the relevant implications and are written in plain English with full 
explanations of the reason behind decisions. Procedures are in place to enable 
the recording and filming of meetings where appropriate. 
Minutes and agendas for all Council and Committee meetings are published 
online as well as all key strategies and policies, unless exempt for the purpose 
of protecting commercially sensitive information. 
All Cabinet decisions have been taken in public apart from exceptions such as 
personnel matters, commercially sensitive information or confidential legal 
advice. 
The Council has worked hard to ensure Council meetings are open to the public 
as far as possible despite Covid-19 restrictions. We welcome public participation 
in our meetings through the procedures and mechanisms provided and have 
produced specific guidance how members of the public can participate remotely 
in Development Management Committee meetings. 

Information requests received by the Council are processed by the Freedom of 
Information Team in accordance with the Freedom of Information Act 2000 and 
Environmental Information Regulations 2004. A review has shown that more 
information could be made more accessible on our website and a revised 
Publication Scheme has been identified as an action for 2021-22. 

 

4.8. Engaging Comprehensively with Institutional Stakeholders 
The Council oversees an annual community engagement programme which 
seeks the views of local residents and partner organisations on what is important 
in the Borough and how its services are perceived in the community. 
2020-21 was the last year of the Council’s 3 year Business Plan, supported by 
annual Action Plans.  With Covid-19 restrictions the Council has had to adapt its 
approach to engage safely with communities and institutional stakeholders, both 
at a Council wide level and at individual service areas, who have their own 
arrangements for such engagement. 
 
As the Council looked to develop a new Corporate Plan for 2021-2024 we carried 
out a significant stakeholder exercise to seek the views.  Over a four week period 
across November and December 2020, 1,632 people, businesses and other 
organisations took the time to provide in-depth responses to the “Your Welwyn 
Hatfield” survey. From these responses emerged five themes which now form 
the basis of the new three year Corporate Plan. 

Page 56

https://www.welhat.gov.uk/access/published-information
https://www.welhat.gov.uk/media/8866/Publication-Scheme/pdf/Welwyn_Hatfield_Borough_Council_Publication_Scheme_-_December_2015.pdf?m=635852569601070000
https://democracy.welhat.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=151
https://www.welhat.gov.uk/haveyoursay
https://www.welhat.gov.uk/media/11178/Public-Speaking/pdf/Public_Speaking_Leaflet_VIRTUAL_MEETINGS.pdf?m=637383023545330000
https://www.welhat.gov.uk/media/13799/Business-Plan-2018-21/pdf/Business_Plan_-_online_version_2.pdf?m=636783294884030000
https://www.welhat.gov.uk/media/13800/Action-Plan-2020-21/pdf/WHBC_Action_Plan_2020-21.pdf?m=637279053884930000


Page 7   June/July 2021 

 
4.9. Engaging with Individual Citizens and Service Users Effectively 

Our Customer First Strategy sets out how we aimed to achieve our ambitions for 
delivering customer service excellence. This has been aided by Our Digital 
Strategy, Think Digital, which sets out how we use modern and innovative digital 
methods to support service delivery, drive change and efficiency, and putting 
customers at the heart of everything we do.  
However many engagement activities have had to be adapted given Covid-19 
restrictions, with increase engagement via email, telephone and digital platforms, 
including the Have your say section on the Council website.  
Unfortunately regular Members surgeries have had to be suspended given 
Covid-19 restrictions. However citizens have had the opportunity to raise or 
discuss issues with ward Members via email and telephone, with contact details 
for each of our Members published on our website. 
 

4.10. Defining Outcomes 
The Business Plan set out the vision, values and priorities for 2018-21. The plan 
was a single strategic document which fully encompassed the Council priorities 
for the Borough and integrated with other key documents such as the Medium 
Term Financial Strategy. 

Looking forward the Council agreed a new Corporate Plan for 2021-2024 at a 
meeting of the full Council on 17 March 2021. The five themes around which the 
new Corporate Plan is based on are:  

- Attractive and accessible green spaces supporting the borough's wellbeing 
- Evolving, vibrant town centres and a growing economy 
- Quality homes through managed growth 
- A sense of community where people feel safe 
- A well-run council which puts our customers first 

 

4.11. Sustainable Economic, Social and Environmental Benefits 
The Council recognises the long-term impact of its decisions and adopts a 
medium term corporate plan and develops an annual budget which reflect the 
desired outcomes form the Council’s activities.  
Individual service areas develop their own service plans. These include 
consideration of the economic, social and environmental impact of their work in 
their service areas. 
The Council will also engage with other bodies on matters that will or may have 
a sustainable economic, social or environmental benefit to the Borough. This will 
include Hertfordshire County Council and East & North Hertfordshire Health 
Trust. 
The Council, as a category 1 organisation for the Civil Contingencies Act 2004, 
has and continues to play a full role as member of the Local Resilience Forum, 

Page 57

https://www.welhat.gov.uk/our-commitments/customers
https://www.welhat.gov.uk/media/15645/Think-Digital/pdf/ThinkDigital.pdf?m=637085597124070000
https://www.welhat.gov.uk/haveyoursay
https://democracy.welhat.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?FN=ALPHA&VW=LIST&PIC=0
https://www.welhat.gov.uk/media/13799/Business-Plan-2018-21/pdf/Business_Plan_-_online_version_2.pdf?m=636783294884030000
http://www.welwyn.gov.uk/article/7789/Our-future-plans
http://www.welwyn.gov.uk/article/7789/Our-future-plans
https://www.welhat.gov.uk/businessplan


Page 8   June/July 2021 

with officers working in partnership with other organisations to respond to the 
impacts of the Covid-19 pandemic across the borough.    
The Council also has in place a Local Strategic Partnership (The Alliance) whose 
remit includes ensuring sustainable economic, social and environmental 
improvements within the Borough. 
The Council’s Capital Programme is structured to achieve appropriate life spans 
and adaptability for future use and ensuring that resources are spent on 
optimising sustainable outcomes. 

 

4.12. Determining Courses of Action (Interventions) 
The Council had a Business Plan which guided the Council between 2018-21, 
supported by a service planning process. Service plans are coordinated to reflect 
the Council’s Business Plan for the year.  
Standard report templates require officers to consider legal, financial, risk 
management, security & terrorism, procurement, climate change and equality & 
diversity implications together with the links to corporate priorities. 
The Council has a Corporate Enforcement Policy in place outlining the steps the 
Council will use to secure compliance with the law while minimising the burden 
on individuals, business and the Council. 
New scrutiny arrangements were introduced in June 2020 to allow Members to 
better scrutinise the Council’s operation, policy making and decisions. The new 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee (OSC) met for the first time on Tuesday 28 
July 2020, with Task and Finish Panels established to scrutinise Budget Setting 
for 2021-22 and the new Corporate Plan; and to scrutinise Housing Maintenance 
and Repairs. 
Both the Monitoring Officer and Section 151 Officer have powers of intervention. 

4.13. Interventions 
Performance information, audit, risk and finance information is used to identify 
any areas of concern and plan required interventions.  
The Council has a planned and agreed annual cycle of meetings. These are 
flexible enough to enable Members to intervene by way of the call-in procedure 
or the calling of extraordinary meetings at any point in the year. 

4.14. Optimising the Achievement of Intended Outcomes 
Outcomes are monitored on a regular basis and are open to scrutiny. The 
Council’s Forward Plan and Publication of Decision List provided the Overview 
and Scrutiny Committees with proposed and recently made executive decisions, 
which are used in determining items for scrutiny. Members are also able to view 
Executive Member Decision Notices, which are recorded and published on 
our website, alongside Officer Delegated Decisions. 
Performance management systems and individual appraisals set the objectives 
for the year for services and individual members of staff. The outcomes of these 
are regularly reviewed. 

Page 58

https://www.welhat.gov.uk/partnerships/wh-alliance
https://www.welhat.gov.uk/media/13799/Business-Plan-2018-21/pdf/Business_Plan_-_online_version_2.pdf?m=636783294884030000
https://welhat.gov.uk/media/9449/Corporate-enforcement-policy/pdf/Corporate_Enforcement_Policy.pdf?m=636842737144200000
https://democracy.welhat.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=151&RD=0&bcr=1
https://democracy.welhat.gov.uk/mgDelegatedDecisions.aspx
https://www.welhat.gov.uk/delegated-decisions


Page 9   June/July 2021 

The Councils Corporate Management Team (CMT) maintains strategic oversight 
of major issues affecting the Council. This includes the risk management system. 

4.15. Developing the Council’s Capacity 
The Head of Paid Service is responsible for the organisation of the Council’s 
staff. 
The Council has a performance management system within which each 
individual member of staff has clear direction for the year against which they are 
appraised. This consists of an end of year appraisal and regular reviews 
throughout the year. 
Benchmarking exercises are undertaken comparing performance and capacity 
with other authorities. 
Reviews of structures are regularly undertaken.  
The Council considers collaborative working with other authorities and bodies to 
increase capacity and improve efficiency. This includes SIAS, Waste 
Partnership, Emergency Planning and Hertfordshire Growth Board. 

Since March 2020 the Council and its staff have had to adapt to operating in a 
pandemic and under significant restrictions imposed through lockdown and social 
distancing regulations and guidance. This has required significant changes in 
working arrangements. However staff have responded extremely well and 
enabled the Council to deliver core functions and corporate objectives despite 
the difficulties encountered. 

Despite the challenging circumstances, the council was able to launch the 
Modernisation Programme in April 2020, which brings together four key strands 
of work, namely: 

i)  Modernisation – ensuring we have the right people in the right place, and 
doing the right thing with the right tools. 
 

ii) Our #OneTeam culture is key to this – demonstrating the behaviours set 
out in the #OneTeam approach. 

 
iii) Think Digital – continuously thinking about how we can plan, deliver and 

monitor our service delivery more efficiency. 
 
iv) Customer First – our services should always be designed by considering 

them first 

The modernisation programme is overseen by the Modernisation Board and 
any major changes to services, savings and financial investment to services are 
reported to the Corporate Management Team meetings. 

 

 

Page 59



Page 10   June/July 2021 

4.16. Developing the Capability of the Council’s Leadership and Other 
Individuals 
Induction training for new staff is also provided covering key aspects of 
governance. Induction training for new members is also provided shortly after 
their election to the Council. Whilst no new members were elected in May 2020 
(with election postponed due to the Covid-19 pandemic), induction training was 
successfully delivered for new members elected following the election on 6 May 
2021. 
Despite social distancing and lockdown restrictions, the Council was still able to 
deliver a full Member Development programme for 2020-21 by fully utilising 
virtual training options.  This programme is overseen by the Member 
Development Steering Group. 
This included delivering mandatory training for new Members of the Hackney 
Carriage Committee, Licensing Committee, Licensing & Regulated 
Entertainment Committee and the Development Management Committee 
(Planning), who are unable to participate in committee meetings until they have 
undertaken the necessary training.   Specific training was also arranged for 
members of the new Overview and Scrutiny Committee to allow them to be more 
effective under the new scrutiny arrangements. 
A robust recruitment process is in place aimed at seeking to place the right 
people in the right roles. The induction builds upon the individual’s knowledge of 
the organisation. Mandatory training on aspects such as health & safety, ICT and 
customer service are in place and professional staff have to undertake additional 
training requirements as set by their respective governing bodies. 

4.17. Managing Risks 
The Council has an approved Risk Management Strategy with risk management 
embedded within the processes and procedures of the Council. Risk registers 
are maintained at both strategic and operational levels. 
The Strategic and Service Risk Registers are maintained on a corporate risk 
management system and are reviewed once every quarter to ensure that they 
adequately reflect the risks facing the Council and that effective mitigation is in 
place. 
The constitution clearly defines how decisions are taken and together with the 
Risk Management Strategy sets out the processes and controls to effectively 
manage risks. 
Risks have to be considered as part of the standard report template together with 
the implications involved. 
Strategic and operational risk information is included in performance clinics and 
resulting updates are reported to the Corporate Management Team, Cabinet and 
Audit Committee. 

Whilst we consider the Council’s overall risk management processes are robust, 
an area for improvement has been identified in respect of some housing property 
compliance arrangements.  Reporting and ownership activities needed to be 
revised in order to properly capture and manage the Council’s progress in 
conducting housing property risk assessments and completing remedial actions.  
The Council has appointed a new Compliance Manager, who heads a new 

Page 60



Page 11   June/July 2021 

Housing Property Services Compliance Team, with a comprehensive Action 
Plan. 

 

4.18. Managing Performance 
Individual Cabinet Members meet regularly with Directors to consider the 
strategic direction, plans and progress of the Council. 
Corporate targets are individually owned by the Council’s services teams and are 
performance managed by the Executive Member, Director and Head of Service 
responsible for them. These are monitored and exception reported through 
quarterly meetings of an internal performance clinic attended by senior Members 
and officers. 
Chaired by the Leader, Deputy Leader and Chief Executive, the clinic meetings 
discuss and debate progress towards corporate targets. Remedial action is then 
identified against each target which falls behind schedule. This is then reported 
to the Cabinet following completion of the clinic meetings. 
Clinic meetings also enable discussions to take place on related service matters 
impacting on the Council on a quarterly basis. 
Performance clinics also include a summary of financial and budgetary 
performance data for both capital and revenue spending. In addition they also 
review complaints data for all services, local public relations and media activity 
involving the Council. 

4.19. Robust Internal Control 
The Audit Committee has terms of reference (in the Constitution) in accordance 
with recognised best practice and an agreed work plan. To effectively discharge 
these responsibilities, the Committee may require any officer to attend meetings 
of the Committee so it may receive explanations regarding any matter it is 
considering. The committee reviews reports containing mandatory assessment 
of financial, legal issues etc. 
Internal audit services have been provided by the Hertfordshire Shared Internal 
Audit Service (SIAS). SIAS has undertaken a work programme approved by the 
Audit Committee and has compiled an annual report on the overall adequacy of 
the Council’s internal control environment and highlights any issues which are 
judged to be relevant to the preparation of the Annual Governance Statement. 
The Council has an Anti-fraud and Anti-Corruption policy in place that sets out its 
arrangements for dealing with fraud and corruption. 
The Council’s Senior Management (Corporate Management Team) comprises: 

• Chief Executive (Head of Paid Service) 
• Three Directors 
• The Section 151 Officer (Chief Financial Officer) 
• The Monitoring Officer 

4.20. Managing Data 
Robust information management policy and procedures are in place and have 
recently been reviewed.  

Page 61

https://democracy.welhat.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=240
https://www.welhat.gov.uk/about/governance/internal-audit
https://www.welhat.gov.uk/about/governance/internal-audit
https://www.welhat.gov.uk/media/689/Anti-Fraud-and-Anti-Corruption-Strategy/pdf/Amended_Anti_Fraud_and_Corruption_Strategy_-_November_2018.pdf?m=636800545917930000


Page 12   June/July 2021 

Handling of data is subject to regulation by the Information Commissioners Office 
and the Local Government Ombudsman. Complaints against the Council have 
been minimal and most are concluded in the Council’s favour. 
The Council complies with the General Data Protection Regulation and The Data 
Protection Act 2018 requirements when handling our residents’, partners’ and 
customers’ data. All the personal and sensitive data we deal with is handled in 
accordance with the six data protection principles. There is a regular cycle of 
training for staff and policies and procedures have been drawn up to guide our 
teams on how they should be securely managing the data they handle. The 
Council is regularly audited to ensure compliance with the aforementioned 
legislation. The Council’s approach to Data Protection is overseen by the Data 
Protection Officer.  
The Council’s Data Quality Statement outlines our responsibilities and 
commitments to providing reliable and relevant data. The Council maintains its 
own performance indicators using them to measure how well we are performing 
and improving our services over time. Key performance indicators are reported 
to quarterly Performance Clinics held internally and led by the Leader. Deputy 
Leader and Chief Executive. An exception report detailing remedial actions 
needed is reported on to the Cabinet, with regular performance reports uploaded 
to the Member Information Hub.  

4.21. Strong Public Financial Management 
The Council has a robust budget setting process with the budget and medium 
term financial strategy agreed annually by the Council. Regular budget update 
reports are provided to the relevant committees. 
Treasury Management, Investment, and Capital Strategies are updated annually 
and approved by Full Council. 
All Council expenditure is governed by Financial Regulations contained in the 
Constitution and sets out the rules and procedures for managing budgets and 
assuring appropriate stewardship of funds.  
The Council’s External auditors are required to produce an Annual Audit letter 
which is presented to the Audit Committee which comprises two main elements: 

• The audit of the Council’s financial statements 
• An assessment of the Council’s arrangements to achieve value for money 

in its use of resources 

In October 2019 the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy 
(CIPFA) launched its Financial Management Code, to drive improvement in 
financial management for councils across the UK.  While the Code is not 
statutory, CIPFA encourages councils to adopt its principles into practice with the 
first full compliance year being 2021-22. 

An assessment of the Council’s position against the 17 key areas covered by 
financial management code has shown that the Council meets the standards set. 
However a number of improvements have been identified and Officers have 
amended the existing continuous improvement programme for 2021/22 to 
incorporate changes that were not already planned. 

 

Page 62

https://www.welhat.gov.uk/media/1315/Data-Quality-Statement/pdf/Data_Quality_Statement.pdf?m=636918694344830000


Page 13   June/July 2021 

4.22. Implementing Good Practice in Transparency 
The Council complies with the Local Government Transparency Code and 
publishes information online including other information frequently requested by 
customers. 
As planned we moved to webcast live all public meetings of the Council in 2020-
21, with meetings available to view on the council website for up to six months. 
This change helped facilitate the necessary move to holding virtual meetings 
during the Covid-19 restrictions. . Physical meetings that have and are being held 
can be filmed, audio-recorded, photographed or reported electronically by 
anyone in attendance through the use of social media, with the exception of 
sessions held in private.   
All reports are published on the Council’s website under the appropriate 
Committee. Reports are standardised and are written in a fair, balanced and 
understandable style. 

4.23. Implementing Good Practice in Reporting 
Comprehensive procedures for the making of decisions are in place and 
contained in the Constitution. 
All reports require the completion of a standard template to cover all risk areas. 
Agendas, reports and committees are published on the website except that which 
is exempt from publication. Exempt information is kept to a minimum. 

4.24. Assurance and Effective Accountability 
The Constitution sets out the executive arrangements and the roles and 
responsibilities of lead Members, the Cabinet and other Council members. 
Roles of Chief Executive and senior officers, including the Chief Financial Officer 
(Section 151 Officer) and the Monitoring Officer are described in the Constitution. 
The Corporate Management Team (comprising the Chief Executive, the three 
Corporate Directors, the Monitoring Officer and the Section 151 Officer) are 
aware of financial and other procedures and controls outlined in the Constitution.  
Each Director and all nine Heads of Service are required to sign a declaration of 
compliance, in the form of a Management Assurance Statement and a completed 
Health and Safety Questionnaire, at the end of each year. 
The work of the Shared Internal Audit Service (SIAS) assists the statutory officers 
in discharging their duties effectively. As part of this an annual report is presented 
to the Audit Committee which includes an opinion on the overall adequacy and 
effectiveness of the Council’s internal control environment. 
The governance statement contains an opinion on the level of assurance that the 
Council’s governance arrangements can provide. 

  

Page 63

https://www.welhat.gov.uk/about/governance/internal-audit


Page 14   June/July 2021 

 

5. Action Plan 
 
5.1 The Governance Group have considered the actions required to plan for and deal 

with any key areas identified for action over the next twelve months: 

Action Lead Officer 

The finance team will continue to monitor the 
Medium Term Financial Strategy and the Council’s 
Financial Resilience in line with CIPFA’s new 
Financial Management Code and economic context. 
Existing processes and reporting will also be 
updated to incorporate best practice as set out in the 
Code. 

Section 151 Officer 

Full review of the Governance Framework and 
incorporation of the organisational arrangements for 
health and safety.  This is within the context of a 
number of regulatory changes and improvements 
identified in respect of the housing property 
compliance action plan 

Corporate Governance 
Group 

Further development of the Council’s Publication 
Scheme and increase the amount of information 
available on the website beyond requirements in the 
Local Government Transparency Code 

Monitoring Officer 

Review of the arrangements in place for the 
Council’s oversight and engagement with Council 
owned (and part owned) trading companies, namely 
Now Housing and Hertfordshire Building Control, in 
light of developments in other local authorities. 

Corporate Governance 
Group 

6. Conclusion 
 
6.1 Subject to the statement at paragraph 4.17 the Council`s governance 

arrangements are regarded as fit for purpose and are in accordance with the 
governance framework. 
 

6.2 The Governance Group has agreed that, following the review of the effectiveness 
of the Council’s Governance framework a number of steps, contained within the 
action plan above have been identified in order to improve the Council’s 
Governance framework.  

 
 
7. Certification 
 
7.1 We have been advised on the implications of the result of the review of the 

effectiveness of the governance framework by the Audit Committee, the 
Standards Committee and the Governance Group and the plan to ensure 
continuous improvement of the system is in place. 

Page 64



Page 15   June/July 2021 

 
7.2 We propose over the coming financial year to take steps to further enhance our 

governance arrangements. We will continue to monitor our governance 
arrangements until the time of the next annual review.  

 
 
Signed: …………………………. ……….……………………… 
  

Ka Ng  
Chief Executive  

 

Councillor Tony Kingsbury  
Leader of the Council

 
Dated: xx June/July 2021  

Page 65



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	7 SHARED INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE - ANNUAL REPORT
	Assurance opinion on Corporate Governance and Risk Management

	8 SHARED INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE - 2021/22 INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT
	10 DRAFT ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2020-21
	Item 10. Appendix A. Draft AGS FY 2020-21
	ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR
	2020/21
	1. Background
	2. Scope of Responsibility
	3. The Purpose of the Governance Framework
	4. Review of Effectiveness
	4.1. The Council is required to prepare an annual governance statement in order to report publicly on the extent to which they comply with the Local Code of Governance. To achieve good governance, the Council should be able to demonstrate that its gov...
	4.4. Behaving with Integrity
	4.5. Demonstrating a Strong Commitment to Ethical Values
	4.6. Respecting the Rule of Law
	4.7. Openness
	4.8. Engaging Comprehensively with Institutional Stakeholders
	4.9. Engaging with Individual Citizens and Service Users Effectively
	4.10. Defining Outcomes
	4.11. Sustainable Economic, Social and Environmental Benefits
	4.12. Determining Courses of Action (Interventions)
	4.13. Interventions
	4.14. Optimising the Achievement of Intended Outcomes
	4.15. Developing the Council’s Capacity
	4.16. Developing the Capability of the Council’s Leadership and Other Individuals
	4.17. Managing Risks
	4.18. Managing Performance
	4.19. Robust Internal Control
	4.20. Managing Data
	4.21. Strong Public Financial Management
	4.22. Implementing Good Practice in Transparency
	4.23. Implementing Good Practice in Reporting
	4.24. Assurance and Effective Accountability

	5. Action Plan
	6. Conclusion
	7. Certification



